CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PuBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

AGENDA

Joint REGULAR Meeting
Wednesday, August 23, 2023 * 6:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

» City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.

» Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records

Request.

PuBLIC MEETING ACCESS

The Regular Meetings of the City Council are scheduled for the 2nd and 4th Wednesdays and are broadcast
live. The video taping of meetings are maintained as a permanent record and contain a detailed account of the
proceedings. Council meeting tapings are archived and available for viewing on the City’s Public Meetings
webpage.

WATCH THE MEETING

o Live web-streaming: Meetings web-stream live on the City’s website on the City’s Public Meetings webpage.
Find the large Live Meeting button.

e  Live Broadcast on Local Govt. Channel: Meetings are broadcast live on Cox Communications - Channel 19
/ Spectrum (Time Warner)-Channel 24 / AT&T U-verse Channel 99.

e  Archived videos online: The video taping of meetings are maintained as a permanent record and contain a
detailed account of the proceedings. Council meeting tapings are archived and available for viewing on the

City’s Public Meetings webpage.

AGENDA MATERIALS

A full City Council agenda packet including relative supporting documentation is available at City Hall, the
Solana Beach Branch Library (157 Stevens Ave.), La Colonia Community Ctr.,, and online
www.cityofsolanabeach.org. Agendas are posted at least 72 hours prior to regular meetings and at least 24
hours prior to special meetings. Writings and documents regarding an agenda of an open session meeting,
received after the official posting, and distributed to the Council for consideration, will be made available for
public viewing at the same time. In addition, items received at least 1 hour 30 minutes prior to the meeting
time will be uploaded online with the agenda posting. Materials submitted for consideration should be
forwarded to the City Clerk’s department 858-720-2400. The designated location for viewing of hard copies is
the City Clerk’s office at City Hall during normal business hours.

PuBLIC COMMENTS
Written correspondence (supplemental items) regarding an agenda item at an open session meeting
should be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office at clerkoffice@cosb.org with a) Subject line to include the
meeting date b) Include the Agenda Item # as listed on the Agenda.

o Correspondence received after the official posting of the agenda, but two hours prior to the meeting start
time, on the meeting day, will be distributed to Council and made available online along with the agenda
posting. All submittals received before the start of the meeting will be made part of the record.

o Written submittals will be added to the record and not read out loud.

And/Or
Verbal Comment Participation:
Please submit a speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting, or the announcement of the
Section/ltem, to provide public comment. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip
for each agenda section: Oral Communications, Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports.
Public speakers have 3 minutes each to speak on each topic. Time may be donated by another individual

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 1 of 9


https://solanabeach.12milesout.com/#page=1
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F0F1200D-21C6-4A88-8AE1-0BC07C1A81A7&Type=B_BASIC
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=wny2RVfZJ2tN24LkqZmkUWNpwL_peNtTZUBlTBZiMM4&s=WwpcEQpHHkFen6nS6q2waMuQ_VMZ-i1YZ60lD-dYRRE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.ci.solana-2Dbeach.ca.us_index.asp-3FSEC-3DF0F1200D-2D21C6-2D4A88-2D8AE1-2D0BC07C1A81A7-26Type-3DB-5FBASIC&d=DwMFAg&c=euGZstcaTDllvimEN8b7jXrwqOf-v5A_CdpgnVfiiMM&r=1XAsCUuqwK_tji2t0s1uIQ&m=wny2RVfZJ2tN24LkqZmkUWNpwL_peNtTZUBlTBZiMM4&s=WwpcEQpHHkFen6nS6q2waMuQ_VMZ-i1YZ60lD-dYRRE&e=
http://www.sdcl.org/locations_SB.html
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
mailto:EMAILGRP-CityClerksOfc@cosb.org
mailto:clerkoffice@cosb.org
mailto:clerkoffice@cosb.org
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/

who is present at the meeting to allow an individual up to 6 minutes to speak. Group: Time may be
donated by two individuals who are present at the meeting allowing an individual up to 10 minutes to
speak. Group Hearings: For public hearings only, time may be donated by two individuals who are
present at the meeting allowing an individual up to 15 minutes to speak.

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE NEEDED

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons with a disability may request an agenda
in appropriate alternative formats as required by Section 202. Any person with a disability who requires a
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to the City Clerk’s
office (858) 720-2400 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

As a courtesy to all meeting attendees, please set all electronic devices to silent mode
and engage in conversations outside the Council Chambers.

CiTY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner
Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

SPEAKERS:

Please submit your speaker slip to the City Clerk prior to the meeting or the announcement of
the Item. Allotted times for speaking are outlined on the speaker’s slip for Oral Communications,
Consent, Public Hearings and Staff Reports.

READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS:

Pursuant to Solana Beach Municipal Code Section 2.04.460, at the time of introduction or adoption of an
ordinance or adoption of a resolution, the same shall not be read in full unless after the reading of the title, further
reading is requested by a member of the Council. If any Councilmember so requests, the ordinance or resolution
shall be read in full. In the absence of such a request, this section shall constitute a waiver by the council of such
reading.

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:

CLOSED SESSION REPORT:

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial

None at the posting of this agenda

PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.
None at the posting of this agenda

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 2 of 9


mailto:clerkadmin@cosb.org?subject=City%20Clerk%20Notice%20of%20Special%20Services%20Needed
mailto:clerkadmin@cosb.org?subject=City%20Clerk%20Notice%20of%20Special%20Services%20Needed
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=C38A5C14-3D2B-4356-BFEA-A35854AC6D45&Type=B_BASIC
mailto:https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SolanaBeach/

Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. This
portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council
on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a speaker slip
(located on the back table) to the City Clerk. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by
the City Council on public comment items. Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement
on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each presentation is THREE MINUTES. No
donations of time are permitted (SBMC 2.04.190). Please be aware of the timer light on the Council
Dais.

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1. - A.11.)

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless
pulled for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern
by submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the Consent Calendar
is addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be
trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be heard
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar to hear the public speaker.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for details.
Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

A.1. Minutes of the City Council.
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve the Minutes of the City Council meetings held on June 14, 2023, June 28,
2023, July 12, 2023, and July 24, 2023.

Iltem A.1. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.2. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council
1. Ratify the list of demands for June 24, 2023 — August 04, 2023.
ltem A.2. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.3. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 General
Fund Adopted Budget.

Iltem A.3. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 3 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.1.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.2.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.3.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf

A.4. League of California Cities’ 2023 Annual Business Meeting Voting Delegates
Designees. (File 0140-10)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Appoint Councilmember MacDonald, primary voting delegate, Councilmember
Becker, 15t alternate, and City Manager Gregory Wade, 2™ alternate, as the voting
delegates for the 2023 Annual Business Meeting of the League of California Cities
Annual Conference.

2. Authorize the City Clerk to attest to the appointments and submit the Official Voting
Form to the League of California Cities.

Iltem A.4. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.5. Fire Management Agreement Amendment. (File 0260-10)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-095:

a. Approve the Fifth Amendment to the Agreement for Cooperative Fire
Management Services by and between the City of Del Mar, City of Encinitas,
and the City of Solana Beach.

b. Authorize the City Manager to execute the fifth amendment.

Iltem A.5. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.6. Destruction of Obsolete Records. (File 0170-50)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-103 authorizing the destruction of officially obsolete
records.
Item A.6. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 4 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.4.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.5.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.6.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf

A.T.

Irrigation Controllers for the Coastal Rail Trail and Fletcher Cove Park.
(File 0700-25)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-100:

a.

b.

Authorizing the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Professional
Services Agreement with Nissho of California, Inc. for Fiscal Year 2023/24.
Authorizing the City Manager to execute a one-time purchase of four Calsense
Irrigation Controllers and corresponding hardware and accessories from Nissho
of California, Inc., in the amount of $24,125.42, for the Coastal Rail Trail and
Fletcher Cove Park.

Appropriating $24,125.42 from the Asset Replacement Fund to the Parks
Operating Budget.

Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2023/24 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

Iltem A.7. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.8.

Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Maintenance Services and As-
Needed Repairs. (File 0700-25)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-101:

a.

b.

C.

Authorizing the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 3 to the Professional
Services Agreement with Seaside Heating and Air for Fiscal Year 2023/24
increasing the compensation by $43,685 for the purchase and installation of two
rooftop HVAC units at City Hall, HVAC upgrades at the Fire Station, a
construction contingency for the City Hall HVAC installation and installation of
mini-split unit for IT at the Fire Station and as-needed repairs to the HVAC
systems at City Hall and the La Colonia Community Center. Total not to exceed
amount of the agreement for Fiscal Year 2023/24 is $55,145.

Appropriating $33,685 from the Facilities Replacement Fund to the Facilities
Operating Budget.

Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2023/24 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

Iltem A.8. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 5 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.7.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.7.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.7.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf

A.9. Door Inspection, Maintenance, and As-Needed Repairs. (File 0700-25)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-102:

a. Authorizing the City Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Professional
Services Agreement with National Garage Door for Fiscal Year 2023/24.

b. Authorizing the City Manager to approve a one-time purchase and installation
of one Stanley ADA Controller at City Hall, in an amount of $3,000 for Fiscal
Year 2023/24.

c. Authorizing the City Manager to increase the As-Needed Repairs amount by
$10,000, for Fiscal Year 2023/24.

d. Authorizing the City Manager to execute amendments to the Professional
Services Agreement with National Garage Door, in an amount not to exceed
$18,900, for Fiscal Years 2024/25, 2025/26, 2026/27 .

ltem A.9. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.10. Shoreline Monitoring Program Services. (File 0610-12)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-107 authorizing the City Manager to execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Coastal Frontiers.

Iltem A.10. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

A.11. City Attorney Services. (File 0400-05)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-106 authorizing the Mayor and City Manager to execute
the First Amendment to the Agreement between the City of Solana Beach and the
Successor Agency to the Solana Beach Community Development Agency and
Burke, Williams & Sorensen LLP.

Iltem A.11. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

NOTE: The City Council shall not begin a new agenda item after 10:30 p.m. unless
approved by a unanimous vote of all members present. (SBMC 2.04.070)

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS: (B.1.)

This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific issue
as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back table) to the
City Clerk. After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the
City Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by
substantial evidence in the record. An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business
project, for which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 6 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.9.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.10.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/A.11.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf

SBMC 2.04.210. A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in
opposition. All other speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the
agenda for time allotment. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

B.1. Public Hearing: 508 S. Nardo Ave., Applicant: Hartnack, Application: DRP22-
020/SDP22-018. (File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum zoning requirements under the SBMC, may
be found to be consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to
meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a DRP.
Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2023-104 conditionally approving a DRP and SDP Waiver to convert a
555 square-foot attached garage to living area, construct a 784 square-foot living
area addition and a 668 square-foot two-car attached garage to a single-story
single-family residence, and perform associated site improvements at 508 South
Nardo Avenue, Solana Beach.

Iltem B.1. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The
final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.-C.3))

Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for time
allotments. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

C.1. Bicycle Safety and Education Programs and Consider Introduction (15t Reading)
of Ordinance 531 - Miscellaneous Driving Rules. (File 0230-20)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Continue to discuss options for bicycle safety and education programs.

2. If the City Council so desires, introduce Ordinance 531 amending Chapter 10.44
(Miscellaneous Driving Rules) of Title 10 (Vehicles and Traffic) of the Solana Beach
Municipal Code regarding bicycles.

Iltem C.1. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 7 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/B.1.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O%20-%20Upd.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf

C.2. California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (CUPCCAA).
(File 0700-10)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report and provide direction as necessary for the proposed
implementation of the California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act
and formation of the Solana Beach Qualified Contractor’s List.

Iltem C.2. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

C.3. City Manager’s Employment Agreement. (File 0520-00)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Consider and adopt Resolution 2023-105 authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Eighth Amendment to the Employment Agreement between the City of Solana
Beach and Gregory Wade to reflect a base salary increase of 7% to $263,031.00
effective July 1, 2023, a one-time stipend of $11,000.00, and a $1,000.00 increase
to the annual vehicle allowance.

Iltem C.3. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:
Adopted June 28, 2023

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE:

GC: Article 2.3. Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be limited
to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on
meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular meeting of the
legislative body.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)

City Selection Committee (meets twice a year) Primary-Heebner, Alternate-Edson
Clean Energy Alliance (CEA) JPA: Primary-Becker, Alternate-Zito

County Service Area 17: Primary-MacDonald, Alternate-Edson

Escondido Creek Watershed Authority: Becker / Staff (no alternate).

League of Ca. Cities’ San Diego County Executive Committee: Primary-MacDonald,
Alternate-Becker. Subcommittees determined by its members.

League of Ca. Cities’ Local Legislative Committee: Primary-MacDonald, Alternate-Becker
League of Ca. Cities’ Coastal Cities Issues Group (CCIG): Primary-MacDonald,
Alternate-Becker

North County Dispatch JPA: Primary-MacDonald, Alternate-Becker

North County Transit District: Primary-Edson, Alternate-MacDonald

Regional Solid Waste Association (RSWA): Primary-Zito, Alternate-MacDonald
SANDAG: Primary-Heebner, 1%t Alternate-Zito, 2" Alternate-Edson. Subcommittees
determined by its members.

I.  SANDAG Shoreline Preservation Committee: Primary-Becker, Alternate-Zito

m. San Dieguito River Valley JPA: Primary-MacDonald, Alternate-Becker

P20 TO

«Q ™

T T

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 8 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/08-23-23/08-23-23%20Reg/C.3.%20Report%20-%2008-23-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC

n.
0. 22" Agricultural District Association Community Relations Committee: Primary-Edson,

San Elijo JPA: Primary-Zito, Primary-Becker, Alternate-City Manager

Primary-Heebner

STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)

a
b.
c.
d
e
f.

g

Business Liaison Committee — Zito, Edson

Fire Dept. Management Governance & Organizational Evaluation — Edson, MacDonald
Highway 101 / Cedros Ave. Development Committee — Heebner, Edson

Parks and Recreation Committee — Zito, Edson

Public Arts Committee — Edson, Heebner

School Relations Committee — Becker, MacDonald

Solana Beach-Del Mar Relations Committee — Heebner, Edson

CITIZEN COMMISSION(S)
a. Climate Action Commission — Zito, Becker

ADJOURN:

Next Regularly Scheduled Meeting is September 13, 2023

Always refer to the City’s website Event Calendar for an updated schedule or contact City

Hall. www.cityofsolanabeach.org 858-720-2400

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

I, Angela Ivey, City Clerk of the City of Solana Beach, do hereby certify that this Agenda for the August 23, 2023
Council Meeting was called by City Council, Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency, Public Financing
Authority, and the Housing Authority of the City of Solana Beach, California, was provided and posted on August
16, 2023 at 3:40 p.m. on the City Bulletin Board at the entrance to the City Council Chambers. Said meeting is
held at 6:00 p.m., August 23, 2023, in the Council Chambers, at City Hall, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach,
California.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk
City of Solana Beach, CA

UPCOMING CITIZEN CITY COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Regularly Scheduled, or Special Meetings that have been announced, are posted on each Citizen Commission’s
Agenda webpage. See the Citizen Commission’s Agenda webpages or the City’s Events Calendar for updates.

o Budget & Finance Commission
Climate Action Commission
Parks & Recreation Commission
Public Arts Commission

View Assessment Commission

O O O O

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda August 23, 2023 Page 9 of 9


http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=3302C065-5C8A-43D2-88C2-F03C61D1DA2A&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=FA26EC83-8D1C-4941-A3B2-20CA81EDCDDE&Type=B_EV

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint Meeting - Closed Session

Wednesday, June 14, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

CiTY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner
Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor / Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald

Absent: None
Also Present:  Greg Wade, City Manager
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY): None

Report to Council Chambers and submit speaker slips to the City Clerk
before the meeting recesses to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6
Agency designated representative: Gregory Wade
Employee organizations: Marine Safety Unit, Miscellaneous

2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 4957
City Manager, City Attorney

3. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8
Property: APN: 263-352-03,04,05,06 and 07 and 263-342-02
City Negotiators: City Manager Greg Wade and City Attorney Johanna
Canlas
Negotiating Parties: Matt Tucker, North County Transit District
Under negotiation: Purchase Price and Terms

Solana Beach City Council Closed Session Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 1 of 2

AGENDA ITEM # A.1.


mbavin
Text Box
AGENDA ITEM # A.1.


4. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)
One (1) Potential case
5. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8
Conference with Real Property Negotiator
Property: APN 263-301-02
Negotiating Parties: John Cumming and Khaki Wennstrom
Under negotiation: Purchase price and terms

No reportable action.

ADJOURN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 6:10 p.m.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk Council Approved:

Solana Beach City Council Closed Session Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PuBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint REGULAR Meeting
Wednesday, June 14, 2023 * 6:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

» City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.

» Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records

Request.

CiITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner

Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor / Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela Ivey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald
Absent:  None
Also Greg Wade, City Manager
Present: Johanna Canlas, City Attorney
Angela lvey, City Clerk
Dan King, Assistant City Manager
Mo Sammak, City Engineer/Public Works Dir.
Rachel Jacobs, Finance Manager
Joseph Lim, Community Development Dir.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: None

FLAG SALUTE:

PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial

e Santa Fe Irrigation District 100th Year Anniversary
Mayor Heebner presented the proclamation.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 1 of 12


https://solanabeach.12milesout.com/#page=1
https://solanabeachca.mycusthelp.com/WEBAPP/_rs/(S(xxiduofmxltdbpy10np3dhks))/SupportHome.aspx
https://solanabeachca.mycusthelp.com/WEBAPP/_rs/(S(xxiduofmxltdbpy10np3dhks))/SupportHome.aspx
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/en/government/city-council
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/

Al Lau, Santa Fe Irrigation District, accepted the proclamation and announced a
celebratory event on June 215t

e Juneteenth
Mayor Heebner read the proclamation.

e Pride Month
Mayor Heebner read the proclamation.

PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.

e Solana Beach School District Tree Removal/Renewal Project
Jodie Brentlinger, Solana Beach School District Superintendent, and John Leland,
Assistant Superintendent, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the unfortunate
decision to remove Torrey Pines along N. Rios Rd. She said that they had residents and
Staff express safety concerns during weather events as well as incidents of falling
branches onto the school area presenting a hazard to the children and Staff, and that the
District had decided to remove the trees based on the risk to property and life.

John Leland, Assistant Superintendent, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the
background of past issues, the tree heights of 70-80 ft., the frequent trimming of the trees
by SDG&E to safeguard the powerlines, falling branch incidents that were alarming to
Staff, the proximity to buildings and play areas, and current conditions of co-dominant
branches, significant leaning, and raised asphalt due to lifted roots. He said that they
intended to replace most trees with new trees that were more appropriate in the vicinity of
the utility lines and that the next step would be an avian study and then SDG&E would
remove all branches and the District would then have the remained trunks removed. He
said that they were looking into some community organizations that may be able to
preserve the wood.

Joe Gabaldon, SDG&E, continued the PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the removal of the
tree branches and collaborating with the District with the preferred types and sizes of trees
for the spaces.

Council and Speakers discussed appreciation for explaining to the public the issues facing
the school properties and safety issues and collaboration of the SDG&E utility line
clearance and the property owners balancing the tree pruning to control these issues.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Becker to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. This
portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council on
items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a speaker slip

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 2 of 12



(located on the back table) to the City Clerk. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by
the City Council on public comment items. Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement
on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each presentation is THREE MINUTES. No
donations of time are permitted (SBMC 2.04.190). Please be aware of the timer light on the Council
Dais.

Jonathan Goodmacher spoke about the recent Grand Jury report and the City’s pending
response by August 9™, that the recommendations in the report included development of transit
stations to include affordable housing, that cities should consider working with the school
districts to identify buildable land for housing for workers at school districts, that cities work
with religious organizations to find buildable land for affordable housing, that the City’s
Measure T allowed the public to be involved in land use decisions and negotiations, that the
City is in negotiations with NCTD in closed sessions and that it would be ideal to involve the
public.

Shawna McGarry spoke about the City’s failure to meet state mandated housing goals in the
fith RHNA cycle, the State potentially coming down on the City for lack of compliance,
considering proactively finding locations for housing, working with St. James as they have
stated they want to build affordable housing, and focus on more transit oriented development
housing, and to consider lease of NCTD land rather than purchase to enable housing to be
built in the area.

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1.-A.9.)

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless pulled
for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by
submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the Consent Calendar is
addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed
to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be heard
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar to hear the public speaker.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for details.
Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

A.1. Minutes of the City Council.
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve the Minutes of the City Council meetings held on May 12, 2023 and May
24, 2023.
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.2. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 3 of 12



1. Ratify the list of demands for May 06, 2023 — May 26, 2023.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.3. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 General Fund
Adopted Budget.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.4. Worker’'s Compensation Claims Third Party Administrator (TPA). (File 0180-70)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-036:

a. Authorizing the City Manager to execute the Agreement for a Third-Party
Administrator for the City’s Worker's Compensation Program for one year with
an authorization of agreement extensions for up to four additional years at the
City Manager’s discretion.

b. Authorize the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget to
appropriate $13,400 for implementation in the Workers Compensation fund for
Professional Services.

c. Authorize a contract amount for CorVel in the not-to-exceed amount of
$125,000 per contract year.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.5. Annual Investment Policy. (File 0350-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-072 approving the City’s Investment Policy for Fiscal Year
2023/24.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.6. Fire Benefit Fee — Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24. (File 0495-20)

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 4 of 12



Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-071:
a. Setting the FY 2023/24 Fire Benefit Fee at $10.00 per unit, and
b. Approving the Fee for levying on the tax roll.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.7. Municipal Improvement Districts Benefit (MID) Fees — Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24.
(File 0495-20)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Approve Resolution 2023-067, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9C, Santa
Fe Hills, at $232.10 per unit for FY 2023/24.

2. Approve Resolution 2023-068, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9E, Isla
Verde, at $68.74 per unit for FY 2023/24.

3. Approve Resolution 2023-069, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 9H, San
Elijo Hills # 2, at $289.58 per unit for FY 2023/24.

4. Approve Resolution 2023-070, setting the Benefit Charges for MID No. 33,
Highway 101/Railroad Right-of-Way, at $3.12 per unit for FY 2023/24.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.8. Lomas Santa Fe Drive Bridge Repairs Project. (File 0820-15)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-080
a. Authorizing the City Council to accept, as complete, the Lomas Santa Fe Drive
Bridge Repairs Project, Bid No. 2022-03, performed by Beador Construction
Company.
b. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion for the project.
Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.9. Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan — Retiree Medical Trust provided by The
California Firefighters Benefit Trust, Effective June 2023. (File 0500-00)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-083 to implement a Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan
— Retiree Medical Trust for the Solana Beach Firefighters’ Association members.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 5 of 12



2. Adopt the Side letter between the City and the Solana Beach Firefighters' Association
to modify and update Section 20 of the MOU to reflect the new Medical Expense
Reimbursement Plan.

3. Adopt the Joinder Agreement between the City of Solana Beach Fire Association and
California Fire Benefit Trust in order to implement a Medical Expense Reimbursement
Plan — Retiree Medical Trust.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS: (B.1.-B.4.)

This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific issue
as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back table) to the
City Clerk. After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the City
Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by substantial
evidence in the record. An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business project, for
which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per SBMC
2.04.210. A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in
opposition. All other speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the
agenda for time allotment. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

B.1. Public Hearing: Solana Beach Lighting Maintenance District Annual
Assessments. (File 0495-20)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Adopt Resolution 2023-078 confirming the diagram and assessment and
approving the City of Solana Beach Lighting Maintenance District Engineer’'s
Report.

3. Adopt Resolution 2023-079 ordering the levy and collection of annual
assessments for FY 2023/24 and ordering the transmission of charges to the
County Auditor for collection.

ltem B.1. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.

Council disclosures.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Becker to close the

public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried unanimously

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 6 of 12


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/B.1.%20Report%20-%2006-14-23%20-%20O.pdf

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously

B.2. Public Hearing: Solana Beach Coastal Rail Trail (CRT) Maintenance District
Annual Assessments. (File 0495-20)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Adopt Resolution 2023-076, approving the Engineer's Report regarding the
Coastal Rail Trail Maintenance District.

3. Adopt Resolution 2023-077, ordering the levy and collection of the annual
assessments regarding the Coastal Rail Trail Maintenance District for Fiscal Year
2023/24.

ltem B.2. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.
Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.
Council disclosures.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Becker and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to close the
public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried unanimously.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember MacDonald and second by Councilmember Zito to
approve. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried unanimously

B.3. Public Hearing: 141 Pacific Ave., Applicant: Maribel & Travis Bradberry, Case:
DRP23-001. (File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the LUP,
SBMC, is consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to meet
the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a DRP.
Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2023-074 conditionally approving like for like replacement of the

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 7 of 12


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/B.2.%20Report%20-%2006-14-23%20-%20O.pdf

existing siding, windows, exterior doors, waterproofing, non-structural roofing and
exterior light fixtures at 141 Pacific Avenue.

Item B.3. Report (click here)
Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Corey Andrews, Principal Planner, presented a PowerPoint (on file).
Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.

Council disclosures.

Maribel Bradberry, Applicant, said that they have been living at this property for the last 10
years and that they have needed to seal their home due to weather issues over the last
several years.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Becker and second by Councilmember Zito to close the
public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried unanimously

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Becker to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously

B.4. Public Hearing: 228 N. Helix Ave., Applicant: Ryan Bowers, Case No.: DRP22-
013, SDP22-011. (File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum zoning requirements under the SBMC, may
be found to be consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to
meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a DRP
and SDP. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15303 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2023-064 conditionally approving a DRP and SDP for a new two-story,
single-family residence with a fully subterranean basement and an attached two-car
garage and perform associated site improvements at 228 North Helix Avenue, Solana
Beach.

Iltem B.4. Report (click here)
Iltem B.4. Supplemental Docs (upd. 6-14-23 at 2:30pm)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 8 of 12


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/B.3.%20Report%20-%2006-14-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/B.4.%20Report%20-%2006-14-23%20-%20O%20-%20R.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/B.4.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20-%20(upd.%206-14%20-%20225pm)%20-%20O.pdf

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item and stated that this public hearing was already
open having been continued from the May 24, 2023 City Council meeting.

Tiffany Wade, Assistant Planner, presented a PowerPoint (on file) of the revised project.
Council disclosures.

Mo Sammak, Engineering/Public Works Director, explained that the excavation and any other
grading associated with this project will have no impact beyond the property lines. He said
that the City Staff would evaluate details of the construction activities and inspect the project
during construction during the grading permit process in case there were any methods or
means that impact outside the property boundaries including the use of heavy equipment
causing vibration or other impacts, and that the contractors usually conduct a photo survey of
adjacent properties before they begin construction.

Council and Staff discussed that the finished grade would be about a foot above the current
grade, a condition to clearly state the requirement of a photo survey, that the project would
construct a detention basin that would offset the impact of additional impervious surface for
runoff, that they have designed a velocity reducing system at the property boundary, that the
combination of the detention basin as well as the velocity reducer at the property boundary
will address the impact of runoff, that there were two sump pumps on either side of the yard
in the front of the property that would take care of the drains and pump the entire site into the
detention basin where the runoff will be reduced and then flow with gravity to the northeast
property boundary where the velocity distribution system will percolate and dissipate over the
property line.

Ryan Bowers, Applicant, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing their revised project.

Jill Martin, Claimant, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the View Assessment
Commission (VAC) meeting, and said that five out of six VAC members agreed that her
primary viewing area was a combination of her living room and kitchen and that the structure
was not designed to minimize impairments, that there were limited changes from the prior
project, that they did not obtain additional input from her in their redesign, and that the issues
were that the project was claustrophobic, had an oppressive impairment, towered over and
bearing down on her property, massive second story, that the view was completely blocked
from her kitchen, and requested that conditions be added to reduce the buildable width to 50-
60% at approximately 500-600 sq. ft., shift the second story eastward about 15 feet, and that
she was already making concessions with these conditions.

Frances and Anthony Gatti, Claimant, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing their issues
and said that the VAC toolkit’s findings that the bulk of the second story should minimize
impact to the existing views, that it would minimize impact of her view if the second story’s
new construction was equal to 50% of the buildable area, that their views are from their
second story only, that it did not appear that the VAC recommendations were implemented
which included lowering the ceiling heights to decrease the overall height, build a one-story,
shift the garage and driveway from the north to the south, decrease the second floor to 50%
of the first floor, shift the bulk of the second floor to the northeast of the property, that after
two years working on the project the square footage had been reduced only 15 sq. ft., that

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 9 of 12



there was a loop hole when a basement is added and not included in the square footage, and
that a resolution would be to decrease the bulk and scale of the second floor to 50% of the
first floor.

Naomi Clum, Claimant, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing the project and the issues
affecting her property and said that this project was built to the maximum possible, that it did
not meet the neighborhood characteristic in scale and style, that the new design stuck out
further and closer to her property, that she suggested that they reduce the amount of the size,
angle, or position of the windows, that the second floor should be allowed to pop out the
additional two feet, that the top story be brought back 15 ft., that the bulk above ground be
scaled down, that it be designed like other two-story homes on the block that appear more
like a single story from the street, that the project had direct views into her dining area, kitchen,
and bedroom not be allowed, that a bulk of the top story be moved southeast with smaller
windows, and that the overall scale of the project be reduced to match the neighborhood
character. She said that the VAC discussed the character of the neighborhood and said that
this project did not fit the characteristics of the surrounding area.

Connie Major (time donated by Deb Hart and Betsy Walcott) said she is part owner of an
adjacent property and that she drove from Santa Ana to speak tonight. She presented a
PowerPoint (on file). She said that her property was to the east of the project, that there was
no sound barrier or privacy mitigation in the case of backyard parties, that grading would
create water runoff in her backyard especially if the sum pumps fail, that it should be built on
the existing elevation or lower rather than raising it three feet, and asked that Council vote no
on the proposed project but that if it was approved that the owners of 211 and 217 N. Sierra
should be indemnified in the area of this project from any failures causing damage or loss.

Rory Bennet stated that there were two other issues to be addressed including the location
of the second spa, which would be 5 ft. from her property, and the location of their office
window looking into her master bedroom and backyard patio. She said that the second spa
seemed to be intended for a future ADU, that the noise of the spa and its participants would
disrupt the bedroom of the adjacent property, and asked that Council disallow this second
spa location or relocate it next to the northwest side of the lot away from neighboring
bedrooms requiring the applicants to install a timing devise to deactivate this second spa from
10:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. She said that their proposed large office window on the east edge of
the project would have a direct view into her master bedroom and backyard patio, invading
her privacy, and asked Council to disallow this window or at least require the sill to be raised
a few feet so that it would not have direct views into her home and backyard.

Ryan Bowers, Applicant, said that each accommodation he makes for one neighbor adversely
affects another neighbor, that moving the house back 15 ft. back as requested by Ms. Martin
adversely would affect 211 N. Sierra who asked that it not be built so far back to the backyard,
that he had delivered plans and that the landscape plans have been available, that they
addressed privacy issues in the back by moving windows above eyeline, that he had spoken
with neighbor concerning the proposed office window about adding vegetation to that area so
there would be no site line, that some pictures shown by the Gatti’'s and Martin’s appeared to
be older views since he showed views provided from Staff, that the project was 3 ft. below the
highest allowable point, it was not exceeding any zoning codes, and that he would ask that
the project be assessed based on the required guidelines.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 10 of 12



Council discussed the primary viewing areas of each claimant, the inability to make all
findings, concerns about the rear yard elevation increase, the bulk and scale and massing,
and lack of articulation, very little square footage reduction from the prior proposal, that a
second story should be allowed but fit within the surrounding area’s second story character.

Council discussed possible suggestions that might help the project including keeping floor
heights as low as possible on the first and second story resulting in the story poles heights
reduced by another foot or two, moving the westernmost wall of the second story so that the
southwest corner of the first floor of the structure would be 15 1/2 or 16 ft., considering
removing the parapet for height issues, minimizing the second story bulk to lessen impact to
existing views, sharing landscape plans with neighbors so they could have an idea of what
vegetation might be in view, stepping down the back patio at the rear of the house to bring it
more in line with 60.16 or 60.60 elevation, shielding the first story with vegetation to lessen
its imposing effect, stepping back the second story so that bulk would lay more to the north
side, considering the alternatives to be compromising having the bulk in the front to
accommodate property owners on N. Sierra, avoiding the southwest corner from a bulk and
scale perspective, and reducing the second story’s bulk to help the view claimants’ privacy as
well as address the overbearing stucco wall.

Council and Jennifer Bolyn, Architect, stated that movement of the building would require a
new 30-day noticing, asked whether a waiver of 30-day noticing would be accepted if the
change was only slightly outside of the envelope by obtaining signatures of adjacent
properties to acknowledge the story poles, and agreed, on behalf of the Applicant, to a
continuance to August 23,

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to continue to
August 23, 2023. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes:
None. Motion carried unanimously

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.-C.2))

Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for time
allotments. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

C.1. Community Grant Program Requests — Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24. (File 0330-25)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the Staff Report, Community Grant applications and consider the
presentations from the grant applicants. This item will come back to the City Council
at the June 24, 2023 City Council Meeting for Council’s grant allocations.

Iltem C.1. Report (click here)
Iltem C.1. Updated Report #1 (6-13-23 at 9am)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Dan King, Assistant City Manager, introduced the item and the funding sources.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 11 of 12


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Report%20-%2006-14-23%20_%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Staff%20Report%20Update%201%20(06-14-23)%20-%20R.pdf

Presentations were made by the following applicants:

Assistant League of Rancho San Dieguito — Kathy O’Leary

Bike Walk Solana — Kristin Brinner

California Wester School of Law Community Law Project — Dana Sisitsky
Community Resource Center — Rebecca Nussbaum

Disconnect Collective — Monica Stapleton

Jaliscience Folkloric Academy — Victor and Elba Montes

La Colonia Foundation - Alex Cardenas and Haidee Banuet

North Coastal Repertory Theatre — Steve Smith

Pathways to Citizenship — Morgan Principi

Rancho Santa Fe Youth Soccer — Marilee Pacelli

Solana Beach Civic and Historical Society — Michele Stribling and Lisa Montes
Solana Beach Community Connections — Peter Gourevitch

C.2. Review of the Draft Fiscal Years 2023/24 and 2024/25 Budget. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Review the FY 2021/22 and FY 2022/23 draft Budget and provide Staff with direction
to formulate the budget for adoption on June 28, 2023.
Item C.2. Report (click here)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Rachel Jacobs, Finance Director, presented a PowerPoint (on file).

Council and Staff discussed how the books are closed with the PARS Trust contribution and
the road project that were allocated later, that other funds may be used if Measure S is

maintained and would pay for fire trucks and modifying the asset replacement planning
process.

ADJOURN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 10:48 p.m.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk Approved

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes June 14, 2023 Page 12 of 12


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-14-23/06-14-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Report%20-%2006-14-23%20-%20O.pdf

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint Meeting - Closed Session

Wednesday, June 28, 2023 at 5:15 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

CiTY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner
Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor / Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald
Absent: None
Also Present: Greg Wade, City Manager

Johanna Canlas, City Attorney

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY): None
Report to Council Chambers and submit speaker slips to the City Clerk before
the meeting recesses to closed session.

LOSED SESSION:
1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6
Agency designated representative: Gregory Wade
Employee organizations: Marine Safety Unit

2. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 4957
City Manager, City Attorney

3. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATOR
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8
Property: APN: 263-352-03,04,05,06 and 07 and 263-342-02
City Negotiators: City Manager Greg Wade and City Attorney Johanna Canlas
Negotiating Parties: Matt Tucker, North County Transit District
Under negotiation: Purchase Price and Terms

No reportable action.

AD RN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 6:08 p.m.

Megan Bavin, Deputy City Clerk Council Approved:



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PuBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint REGULAR Meeting
Wednesday, June 28, 2023 * 6:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California
Minutes contain a summary of significant discussions and formal actions taken at a City Council meeting.
City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.

» Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records

Request.
CiTY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner
Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor / Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela Ivey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 6:13 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald
Absent:  None
Also Greg Wade, City Manager
Present: Johanna Canlas, City Attorney
Megan Bavin, Deputy City Clerk
Dan King, Assistant City Manager
Mo Sammak, City Engineer/Public Works Dir.
Rachel Jacobs, Finance Dir.
Joseph Lim, Community Development Dir.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: None

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 1 of 10


https://solanabeach.12milesout.com/#page=1
https://solanabeachca.mycusthelp.com/WEBAPP/_rs/(S(xxiduofmxltdbpy10np3dhks))/SupportHome.aspx
https://solanabeachca.mycusthelp.com/WEBAPP/_rs/(S(xxiduofmxltdbpy10np3dhks))/SupportHome.aspx
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/en/government/city-council
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/

PROCLAMATIONS/CERTIFICATES: Ceremonial

None at the posting of this agenda

PRESENTATIONS: Ceremonial items that do not contain in-depth discussion and no action/direction.
None at the posting of this agenda

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. This
portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council on
items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a speaker slip
(located on the back table) to the City Clerk. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by
the City Council on public comment items. Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement
on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each presentation is THREE MINUTES. No
donations of time are permitted (SBMC 2.04.190). Please be aware of the timer light on the Council
Dais.

Barbara Gordon stated that she is the youth advisor for a Hispanic youth group called The
Changers, that all of her high school students live in multi-unit housing, that she is concerned
by the amount of unprotected exposure to secondhand smoke and marijuana smoke in their
homes, that families living in multi-unit housing are disproportionately affected by tobacco and
marijuana secondhand smoke and are more likely to suffer from either disease or death from
tobacco use, and asked that Council make prohibiting smoking in multi-unit housing a priority.

Peggy Walker stated that she works with The Changers, that the group is working on a teen
driving project related to the Teen Deadly Driving Zone, and that the youth are working to
inform their peers and parents about DUI risks, as well as the risks of driving under the
influence of marijuana.

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:
An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1.-A.9.)

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless pulled
for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern by
submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the Consent Calendar is
addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be trailed
to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be heard
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar to hear the public speaker.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for details.
Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

A.1. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Ratify the list of demands for May 27, 2023 — June 09, 2023.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 2 of 10



Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.2. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 General Fund
Adopted Budget.

ltem A.2. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.3. Appropriations Limit - Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24. (File 0330-60)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-073 establishing the FY 2023/24 Appropriations Limit in
accordance with Article XIlIB of the California Constitution and Government Code
Section 7910 and choosing the County of San Diego’s change in population growth
to calculate the Appropriations Limit.

ltem A.3. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.4. Annual Fire Inspection Compliance. (File 0260-20)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-087 accepting a report on the status of all state-mandated
annual fire inspections in the City of Solana Beach in conjunction with SB 1205 and
California Health and Safety Code Section 13146.4.

ltem A.4. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.5. Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Work Plan Adoption. (File 0410-08)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Consider and adopt the final Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Work Plan.

ltem A.5. Report (click here) .

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 3 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.2.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.3.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.4.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.5.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf

A.6. 2023 Street Maintenance and Repairs Project. (File 0820-35)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-085:

a. Awarding a construction contract to Quality Construction & Engineering in the
amount of $1,088,838.40, for the 2023 Street Maintenance & Repairs Project,
Bid 2023-07.

b. Approving an amount of $86,161.60 for construction contingency.

c. Authorizing the City Manager to execute the construction contract on behalf of
the City.

d. Authorizing the City Manager to approve cumulative change orders up to the
amount of the construction contingency.

e. Authorizing the appropriation of $110,000 from the Road Repair and
Accountability Act (SB1) account to the Annual Pavement Management Project.

f. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

ltem A.6. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.7. Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) Central Control System &
HVAC Rooftop Units Project. (File 0700-25)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-086:
a. Authorizing the City Council to accept, as complete, the HVAC Control System
& HVAC Rooftop units Replacement Project, Bid No. 2022-05, performed by
Seaside Heating and Air.
b. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

ltem A.7. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.8. Fiscal Year 2021/22 Street Maintenance and Repair Project. (File 0820-35)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-084:

a. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a final change order in the amount of
$179,265 for a final contract amount of $878,329.

b. Authorizing the City Council to accept, as complete, the FY 21-22 Street
Maintenance & Repair Project, Bid No. 2022-01, performed by PAL General
Engineering.

c. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

d. Appropriating $6,715 to the FY 2021/22 Annual Pavement Management Project
from the Sanitation Fund.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 4 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.6.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.7.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf

e. Appropriating $168,114 to the FY 2021/22 Annual Pavement Management
Project from the General Fund.

f. Authorizing the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2022/23 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

Item A.8. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.9. Fire Apparatus Maintenance and Repair Services. (File 0260-40)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-088:
a. Authorizing an increase to the PSA with North County Emergency Vehicle
Services for an amount not to exceed $70,000 for FY 2022/23.

b. Authorizing an increase to the four (4) potential extensions of the PSA with North
County Emergency Vehicle Services to an amount not to exceed $85,000 per
year.

Authorizing the first-time extension for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

Authorizing the City Manager to execute the First Amendment and subsequent
time extensions to the agreement with North County Emergency Vehicle
Services.

ltem A.9. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

oo

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.)

Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for time
allotments. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

C.1. Community Grant Program Awards — Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24. (File 0330-25)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Select the FY 2023/24 Community Grant Program recipients and identify an award
amount to each recipient.

2. Adopt Resolution 2023-091 ratifying and authorizing the funding for the selected
community grant applicants for financial assistance under the FY 2023/24
Community Grant Program.

Iltem C.1. Report (click here)

Gregory Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Dan King, Assistant City Manager, said that the allotted amount was $56,000 but that some
Councilmembers had discussed increasing the amount.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 5 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.8.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/A.9.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf

Council discussed requests and allocations.

Assistance League Rancho San Dieguito - $4,000
BikeWalk Solana - $3,650

Boys & Girls Club of San Dieguito - $6,000
California Western School of Law - $5,000

Casa de Amistad - $5,000

Community Resource Center - $5,000
Disconnect Collective Inc. - $3,000

Jailscience Folkloric Academy - $5,000

La Colonia Community Foundation - $6,000
North Coast Reparatory Theater - $6,000
Pathways to Citizenship - $4,350

Rancho Santa Fe Youth Soccer - $1,000

Solana Beach Community Connections - $6,000
Solana Beach Civic & Historical Society - $6,000

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Zito and second by Councilmember Becker to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS: (B.1.-B.4.)

This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific issue
as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back table) to the
City Clerk. After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the City
Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by substantial
evidence in the record. An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business project, for
which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per SBMC
2.04.210. A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in
opposition. All other speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the
agenda for time allotment. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

B.1. Public Hearing: Solid Waste and Recycling Rate Increase for EDCO Waste and
Recycling Services. (File 1030-15)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Report Written Protests Received, Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public
Hearing.

2. Following the Public Hearing, consider adoption of Resolution 2023-092 approving
EDCO'’s rate review request increasing solid waste, recycling and organics rates
for Fiscal Year 2023/24 in accordance with the Franchise Agreement.

Iltem B.1. Report (click here)
Iltem B.1. Supplemental Docs (upd. 6-27-23 at 515pm)

Gregory Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Dan King, Assistant City Manager, presented a Powerpoint (on file).

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 6 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.1.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.1.%20Supplements/B.1.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(6-27%2C%20515pm)%20-%20O.pdf

Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.
Council disclosures.

Megan Bavin, Deputy City Clerk, reported that the only protest received was distributed as a
Blue Folder.

Deputy Mayor Zito said that the City normally would have seen a higher rate increase because
in a usual year there would have been a tipping increase and that the City had renegotiated
a new contract with EDCO which froze the rates of the tipping fees for this year.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to close the
public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried.

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Zito and second by Councilmember Edson. Approved 5/0.
Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried.

B.2. This item has been left blank.

B.3. Public Hearing: 107 S. Cedros Ave., Applicant: C2 Building Group, Case: DRP22-
015, SDP22-013. (File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum objective requirements under the SBMC, is
consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to meet the
discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a DRP and SDP.
Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2023-082 conditionally approving a DRP, SDP, and comprehensive
sign plan amendment for exterior improvements to an existing two-story
commercial building at 107 South Cedros Avenue, Solana Beach.

Iltem B.3. Report (click here)

Gregory Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Tiffany Wade, Associate Planner, presented a Powerpoint (on file).

Council disclosures.

Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.

Council and Staff discussed that there would be no change to the vehicular access, that the

wheel stops provided more parking across the back on the NCTD side, that the pedestrian
access would be maintained via the gate, signage and placement, that the intent for the

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 7 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.3.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf

vehicular security gate was to have it closed during off hours, the concerns about parking
spaces and office space tenants using all of the parking, that there would not be enough
parking left for retail, that they have a shared parking agreement with NCTD, that the retail
component was approximately 900 square feet requiring a little over three parking spaces,
and that they have more parking than required by the code.

Josh Chesnut, Applicant, spoke about the culture and environment of their building, wanting
to open windows and doors, having an indoor and outdoor feel, bringing people back to work,
that they have a great retail tenant, and that they want to continue to build up Solana Beach.

Council and applicant discussed that the deck was uncovered, that the current lease with
retail tenants allocated them three stalls, and that they plan to collaborate with a local artist
to update the mural to something reflective of Solana Beach.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to close the
public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve and
waive Story Poles. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes:
None. Motion carried.

B.4. Fiscal Years 2023/24 and 2024/25 Budget Adoption. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, Close the Public Hearing.

2. Adopt Resolution 2023-089 approving the Fiscal Year 2023/24 and Fiscal Year
2024/25 Budget.

ltem B.4. Report (click here)

ltem B.4. Updated Report #1 (added 6-27-23)
ltem B.4. Updated Report #2 (added 6-27-23)
ltem B.4. Updated Report #3 (added 6-28-23)

Gregory Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.
Rachel Jacobs, Finance Director, presented a Powerpoint (on file).
Council Disclosures.

Council and Staff discussed that the City had a notable projected deficit for the current year,
that this was due to contributions from the prior year’s large surplus to the PARS Trust Fund
and the Street Repair Project being recorded in Fiscal Year (FY) 2023 rather than FY 2022,
which caused the deficit, that typically the surplus funds are allocated to the prior fiscal year
in which they were generated but it was done differently this year, that there is not a large
operating deficit in FY 2023, and that it's a bookkeeping change that will be addressed next
year.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 8 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.4.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.4.%20Supplements/B.4.%20Updated%20Report%20%231%20(upd.%206-27%20at%209am)%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.4.%20Supplements/B.4.%20Updated%20Report%20%232%20(upd.%206-27%20at%20315pm)%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/B.4.%20Supplements/B.4.%20Updated%20Report%20%233%20(upd.%206-28%20at%201015am)%20-%20O.pdf

Council and Staff discussed that by the second year there will be a healthy deficit of about
1.5 million in the sewer fund, that the last sewer rate study was done in 2021 and continues
through Fiscal Year 2025/26, that the current study recommended a 0% annual increase,
different options for handling the next sewer studies, bringing the options back to Council to
discuss further, that over the next two years allocating enough funds from Measure S to the
Streets and Roads Project to get to $1.1 million which the last road study said was the amount
needed to see notable improvements in street conditions, adding funds to the CIP item for
upgrades and maintenance to the Coastal Rail Trail, and having the City Manager look at
adding to the asset replacement funds as some buildings and trucks are older and may need
to be replaced.

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to close the
public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried.

Motion: Moved by Deputy Mayor Zito and second by Councilmember Becker to approve with
the following two changes: 1. Return to Council with a CIP Request, 2. Adjust the budget such
that there is enough revenue moved from the anticipated Measure S revenues into the annual
Pavement Management Program to get to $1.1 million for each year going forward. Approved
5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.2.)

Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for time
allotments. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

C.2. 437 Marview Drive, Applicants: Bertolino, DRP21-009 — Deferred Landscape Plan
(File 0600-40)

The revised Conceptual Landscape Plan meets the minimum objective requirements
under the SBMC, Chapter 17.56 and may be found to be acceptable by the City
Council. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Consider approval of the revised conceptual landscape plan and find that City
Council Condition D.ll. of Resolution 2023-006 has been satisfied for the
associated DRP/SDP at 437 Marview Drive, Solana Beach.

Iltem C.2. Report (click here)
Iltem C.2. Updated Report #1 (added 6-27-23)
Iltem C.2. Supplemental Docs (upd. 6-26-23 at 5:30pm)

Mayor Heebner recused herself due to property interest within 500ft of the project property.
Gregory Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.
Council Disclosures.

Katie Benson, Senior Planner, presented a Powerpoint (on file).

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 9 of 10


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Report%20-%2006-28-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Supplements/C.2.%20Updated%20Report%20%231%20(added%206-27-23)%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/06-28-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Supplements/C.2.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(6-26-23)%20-%20O.pdf

John Mansdorfer, neighbor, stated that he was a signer in the supplemental blue folder letters,
and asked if the conceptual plan would become the final landscape plan.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Edson and second by Councilmember Becker to approve
the landscape plan as final and that all plant container sizes and locations and any native
planting areas be approved by the neighbors involved in this matter (Mansdorfer, Greenstein,
Sampson). Approved 4/0/1. Ayes: Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Absent:
Heebner (Recused). Motion carried.

WORK PLAN COMMENTS:
Adopted June 22, 2022

Councilmember Zito spoke about seeing families and children biking through Harbaugh
Seaside Trails, that they are biking through the area because the Coastal Rail Trail stops at
the south end of it and the Encinitas protected bike lanes start at the north end, that this is
happening because there are no other protected bike lanes, that the City should look at adding
protected bike lanes and possibly continuing the Coastal Rail Trail all the way to the edge of
the City along the side of Harbaugh Seaside Trails.

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE: None

GC: Article 2.3. Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be limited
to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on
meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular meeting of the
legislative body.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)
STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)
CITIZEN COMMISSION(S)

ADJOURN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 8:02 p.m.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Agenda June 28, 2023 Page 10 of 10


https://www.solana.360-biz.com/en/government/city-council/regional-appointments
https://www.solana.360-biz.com/en/government/city-council/regional-appointments

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint Meeting - Closed Session
Wednesday, July 12, 2023 at 5:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner

Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor / Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:

Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald
Absent: None

Also Present: Greg Wade, City Manager
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY): None

Report to Council Chambers and submit speaker slips to the City Clerk before
the meeting recesses to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:
1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 4957
City Manager, City Attorney
2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)
Two (2) Potential cases

No reportable action.

AD RN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 6:05 p.m.

Angela lvey, City Clerk Council Approved:



CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY,
PuBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

Joint REGULAR Meeting
Wednesday, July 12, 2023 * 6:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

» City Council meetings are video recorded and archived as a permanent record. The video recording captures the
complete proceedings of the meeting and is available for viewing on the City's website.

» Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time prior to meetings for processing new
submittals. Complete records containing meeting handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records

Request.

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner

Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela Ivey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:
Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald
Absent:  None
Also Greg Wade, City Manager
Present: Johanna Canlas, City Attorney
Angela Ivey, City Clerk
Dan King, Assistant City Manager
Mo Sammak, City Engineer/Public Works Dir.
Rachel Jacobs, Finance Dir.
Joseph Lim, Community Development Dir.

CLOSED SESSION REPORT: None

FLAG SALUTE:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Becker and second by Deputy Mayor Zito to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Comments relating to items on this evening’s agenda are taken at the time the items are heard. This
portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the City Council
on items relating to City business and not appearing on today’s agenda by submitting a speaker slip

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 1 of 9


https://solanabeach.12milesout.com/#page=1
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=F5D45D10-70CE-4291-A27C-7BD633FC6742&Type=B_BASIC
https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=C38A5C14-3D2B-4356-BFEA-A35854AC6D45&Type=B_BASIC
http://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/

(located on the back table) to the City Clerk. Pursuant to the Brown Act, no action shall be taken by
the City Council on public comment items. Council may refer items to the City Manager for placement
on a future agenda. The maximum time allotted for each presentation is THREE MINUTES. No
donations of time are permitted (SBMC 2.04.190). Please be aware of the timer light on the Council
Dais.

Howard Rosen asked that City Council meet regarding the problem with the short term
vacation rentals (STVR) and said that a new rental was on Santa Rosita which was renting to
several renters within the same week, that no permit was posted on the window, that he and
neighbors had filed complaints, that STVRs would depreciate the value of homes, that he
requested that they be banned in the City, and that if they are not banned that they should
have a capped number of STVRs in the same place, that a full week should be enforced, the
maximum capacity of people allowed should be based on the size of the home, that cars must
be parked in the garage, and that permits should be visible from the streets and not obscured
by bushes and structures.

Council stated that there had been a meeting on this topic in May and there would be another
one in September to address their concerns, consider restrictions, that a party house was
disruptive to a neighborhood, and balancing property owners’ need to rent their homes.

COUNCIL COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS / COMMENTARY:

An opportunity for City Council to make brief announcements or report on their activities. These items are not
agendized for official City business with no action or substantive discussion.

A. CONSENT CALENDAR: (Action Items) (A.1.-A.8.)

Items listed on the Consent Calendar are to be acted in a single action of the City Council unless
pulled for discussion. Any member of the public may address the City Council on an item of concern
by submitting to the City Clerk a speaker slip (located on the back table) before the Consent Calendar
is addressed. Those items removed from the Consent Calendar by a member of the Council will be
trailed to the end of the agenda, while Consent Calendar items removed by the public will be heard
immediately after approval of the Consent Calendar to hear the public speaker.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for details.
Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

A.1. Register Of Demands. (File 0300-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council
1. Ratify the list of demands for June 10, 2023 — June 23, 2023.

ltem A.1. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.2. General Fund Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Changes. (File 0330-30)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Receive the report listing changes made to the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 General
Fund Adopted Budget.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 2 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.1.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.2.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf

ltem A.2. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.3. Citywide Traffic Speed Survey Validation. (File 0860-45)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-093:
a. Validating the 2023 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Speed Surveys performed
by Minagar and Associates.
b. Declaring upon the basis of the 2023 Citywide Engineering and Traffic Speed
Surveys that the speed limits listed in Exhibit A shall be effective when
appropriate signs giving notice thereof are erected upon the street.

ltem A.3. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.4. Fletcher Cove Park Lithocrete Repairs Project. (File 0820-35)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-081:

a. Authorizing the City Council to accept, as complete, the Fletcher Cove Park
Lithocrete Concrete Repairs Project, Bid No. 2022-083, performed by T.B
Penick & Sons, Inc.

b. Authorizing the Finance Director to appropriate $4,263 from Fund 450 Sand
Replenishment/Transit Occupancy Tax (TOT) to the Fletcher Cove Concrete
Repairs project listed in the Capital Improvement Program.

c. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

ltem A.4. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.5. Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Salary, Classification, Compensation Plans and MOUs.
(File 0530-30)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-096 approving the FY 2023/2024 Salary and
Compensation schedules.

2. Adopt Resolution 2023-097 approving the Memoranda of Understanding between
the City and the Solana Beach Employee Association-Miscellaneous and between
the City and Solana Beach Employee Association-Marine Safety Unit.

3. Authorize the City Treasurer to amend the FY 2023/2024 Adopted Budget
accordingly.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 3 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.2.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.3.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.4.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf

ltem A.5. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.6. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Pedestrian Ramps Project. (File 0820-15)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-094:
a. Authorizing the City Council to accept, as complete, the ADA Pedestrian Ramps,
Bid No. 2023-02, constructed by Portillo Concrete.
b. Authorizing the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion.

ltem A.6. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.7. Federal Public Affairs Consultant Services. (File 0480-80)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-098 authorizing the City Manager to extend and amend the
Professional Services Agreement with Warwick Consulting Group.

ltem A.7. Report (click here)

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

A.8. Response to San Diego County Grand Jury Report “Housing in San Diego
County”. (File 0470-80)

Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Adopt Resolution 2023-099, approving the response to the Grand Jury Report and
authorize the Mayor and the City Manager to sign the response.

Iltem A.8. Report (click here)
Iltem A.8. Supplemental Docs (updated 7-12-23 at 10am)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

This item was pulled by a member of the public for public comment.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Kristin Brinner spoke about her support for a letter submitted by Jonathan Goodmacher, that
it appeared that funding would be needed for the City to assist in the development of

affordable housing, that additional assistance could be to reform the code to ease the
development of ADUs in the way of time consuming process and expense, and adding to the

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 4 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.5.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.6.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.7.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.8.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.8.%20Supplements/A.8.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(upd.%207-12%2C%2010am)%20-%20OO.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/A.8.%20Supplements/A.8.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(upd.%207-12%2C%2010am)%20-%20OO.pdf

grand jury response that the City should be more proactive in working with NCTD on moving
an RFP forward.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS: (B.1.)

This portion of the agenda provides citizens an opportunity to express their views on a specific issue
as required by law after proper noticing by submitting a speaker slip (located on the back table) to the
City Clerk. After considering all of the evidence, including written materials and oral testimony, the
City Council must make a decision supported by findings and the findings must be supported by
substantial evidence in the record. An applicant or designee(s) for a private development/business
project, for which the public hearing is being held, is allotted a total of fifteen minutes to speak, as per
SBMC 2.04.210. A portion of the fifteen minutes may be saved to respond to those who speak in
opposition. All other speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the
agenda for time allotment. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

B.1. Public Hearing: 255 S. Nardo, Applicant: Harris, Case: DRP22-023, SDP22-022.
(File 0600-40)

The proposed project meets the minimum zoning requirements under the SBMC, may
be found to be consistent with the General Plan and may be found, as conditioned, to
meet the discretionary findings required as discussed in this report to approve a DRP
and SDP. Therefore, Staff recommends that the City Council:

1. Conduct the Public Hearing: Open the Public Hearing, Report Council Disclosures,
Receive Public Testimony, and Close the Public Hearing.

2. Find the project exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to
Section 15301 of the State CEQA Guidelines; and

3. If the City Council makes the requisite findings and approves the project, adopt
Resolution 2023-075 conditionally approving a DRP and SDP to construct a 790
square foot addition to an existing two-story single-family residence with an attached
garage and perform associated site improvements at 255 S. Nardo Avenue, Solana
Beach.

Iltem B.1. Report (click here)
Iltem B.1. Supplemental Docs (Updated 7-12-23 at 10am)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals. The
final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Corey Andrews, Principal Planner, presented a PowerPoint (on file).
Mayor Heebner opened the public hearing.

Council disclosures.

Erica Harris, Applicant, introduced herself and her family and their intention to make this their
home.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 5 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/B.1.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/B.1.%20Supplements/B.1.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(upd.%207-12%2C%2010am)%20-%20O.pdf

Council and Applicant discussed the trees and that all would stay but maybe one tree.

Motion: Moved by Councilmember Zito and second by Councilmember Edson to close the
public hearing. Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None.
Motion carried unanimously.

Motion: Moved by Mayor Heebner and second by Councilmember Becker to approve.
Approved 5/0. Ayes: Heebner, Zito, Edson, Becker, MacDonald. Noes: None. Motion carried
unanimously.

C. STAFF REPORTS: (C.1.-C.2))

Submit speaker slips to the City Clerk.

All speakers should refer to the public comment section at the beginning of the agenda for time
allotments. Please be aware of the timer light on the Council Dais.

C.1. Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Update and Discussion. (File 0610-10)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Provide input and direction regarding the City’s ADU regulations.

Iltem C.1. Report (click here)
Iltem C.1. Supplemental Docs (updated 7-12-23 at 1:55pm)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

John Delmer, Assistant Planner, presented a PowerPoint (on file) reviewing possible revisions
of Accessory Dwelling Unit to be consistent with the City’s newly adopted Housing Element.

Andy Crocker spoke about the need for some streamlined process, consistent with State
regulations, for ADUs to assist their clients who want to build, and that the priority issues have
been the fire zone and grading issues.

Kristin Brinner spoke about two friends that were unable to build ADUs because of the
sensitive areas of the City, that exempting excavation immediately below the habitable area
is a great idea, considering that stabilizations of bluff or canyon areas not be required to
preserve the natural bluffs and canyons, and she wondered what prevented the 66
applications of the 90 submitted last year from being built and whether some of these revisions
might address why some projects were not built.

Mark Mariani spoke about having put in an application to convert an existing permitted
structure into an ADU that was denied and said that it was within the hillside overlay zone,
that the lot was 22,000 sq. ft., the pool was 20 ft. from the hillside overlay, and the proposed
ADU was 120 ft. to the other end of the property, that a blanket prohibition prevented it from
approval, that they had conducted a biological survey and plant inventory and asked that
Council consideration reasonable requests in these revisions.

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 6 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Supplements/C.1.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(7-12%2C%20155pm)%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/C.1.%20Supplements/C.1.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(7-12%2C%20155pm)%20-%20O.pdf

Council discussed grading and exempting 50 cubic yards of excavation not counting the cut
but counting the fill.

Council agreed with the Staff recommendation on Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area
(ESHA).

Council agreed with Staff recommendation of the bluff top properties.

Council discussed the Hillside Overlay Zone and the slope analysis required to determine any
restrictions, that regulations preclude development on a slope that exceeds 25% except for a
single family home, that a survey may provide appropriate topography lines that would satisfy
the slope conditions and thereby not requiring a slope analysis be prepared by a licensed civil
engineer, soils, or geographical engineer, how a slope is determined by the rise and run of
the slope, and that insurance companies in the State were now restricting or not issuing new
insurance policies.

Council discussed the Wildlife Urban Interface (WUI) — Very High Hazard Severity Zone and
a policy that would allow for it in high fire zone areas but still requiring it to be protected above
and beyond what a normal structure might require to prevent causes of a wildfire or expansion
of fire issues.

Council agreed to leave off-street parking as is with no changes.

Council discussed the Pre-Approved Accessory Dwelling Unit Program (PADU) and that roofs
would be required to match the primary residences, providing options to choose from in the
pre-approved designs, asking the architect for suggestions on 3 or 4 designs, the complete
package submittal would include the site plan, utility connection, the chosen plan, that current
ADUs take about four to five months to process, there would not be any comments required
by the building department but may require reviews by Engineering for grading and Planning
department for setbacks, and that the process time would be reduced significantly.

This item would return Council with updates from direction provided.

C.2. Electric Bicycle Safety Measures. (File 0250-00)
Recommendation: That the City Council

1. Discuss options for e-bike safety and education programs in coordination with the
Sheriff's Department and receive direction on options related to both education and
enforcement actions in the City.

Iltem C.2. Report (click here)
Iltem C.2. Supplemental Docs (updated 7-12-23 at 1:20pm)

Posted Reports & Supplemental Docs contain records up to the cut off time, prior to the start of the meeting, for processing new submittals.
The final official record containing handouts, PowerPoints, etc. can be obtained through a Records Request to the City Clerk’s Office.

Greg Wade, City Manager, introduced the item.

Dan King, Assistant City Manager, presented a PowerPoint (on file).

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 7 of 9


https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Report%20-%2007-12-23%20-%20O.pdf
https://www.cityofsolanabeach.org/sites/default/files/Solana%20Beach/Meetings/City%20Council/2023/07-12-23/07-12-23%20Reg/C.2.%20Supplements/C.2.%20Supplemental%20Docs%20(upd.%207-12%2C%201pm)%20-%20O.pdf

Sheriff's Captain Lawrence said that they had collaborated with Earl Warren and open to
further collaboration with the City and Solana Beach School District.

Avery Kapsch and Tessa Koff spoke about concerns of people wearing ear pods, not wearing
helmets, using phones while on the bike, teaching kids the dangers of these issues, the safety
class at Earl Warren that was basic but not helpful with how to merge into other lanes on the
road and where you can and cannot bike, and that the class should be a more physical in
person experience with a safety specialist.

Council and Speakers discussed providing the feedback to the class instructors at Earl
Warren, that the ebike training did not cover moving over to a left hand turn lane and that it
was more about how to start an ebike and use lights at night, the concerns of riding the main
hill on Lomas Santa Fe east of the freeway, the speed, and many bumps in the road, and that
they both have Life360 which is a way for their parents to track where they are at all times.

Jill Cooper said she was in support of the education emphasizing on road training, she
thanked Council for funding Bike/Walk/Solana with a community grant, that she feels
confident riding an ebike since she took a safe cycling class.

Karl Rudnick said that he was a certified League of American Bicyclist cycling instructor, that
motorists need to be more aware since there are more bikes on the road, that a 9-hour smart
cycle class is ideal, that there should be education for parents before they buy an ebike for
their children, to consider making bike lane improvements on Lomas Santa Fe earlier than
the larger project, that they had talked to an ebike shop about selling different throttles for
kids and that some shops will disable the throttle and turn it into a class 1, and that a handout
or a QR code could be provided at bike shops to parents purchasing ebikes.

Shawna McGarry said she was supportive of the City making it safer for kids, that her own
children have ebikes and some areas of the City do not feel safe, that some areas have no
bike lanes and cyclists get honked at using the sharrows, that she likes the idea of connecting
more with the schools, making more near term effort to improvements on Lomas Santa Fe for
the bikes, and thanked Council for the Bike/Walk/Solana funds for safety classes.

Kristin Brinner said that the infrastructure improvements are much needed, walking kids to
school is dangerous from cars and bikes, consider short term improvements on Lomas Santa
Fe by narrowing car lanes, restricting right hand turns on red lights at Nardo and Stevens
intersections, automatic red light enforcement at those intersections, that bike lanes are used
for the backup line to pick up children from school, and that garbage cans are left in the bike
lanes on Fridays on the north side of Lomas Santa Fe.

Doug Alden said that he appreciated the City being proactive and working with the schools,

that adults need to be educated since they model the behavior for children, and to utilize
enforcement actions for drivers of ebikes and cars.

Council discussed AB530 legislation to create an ebike training and licensing program and
prohibit ages 12 years and younger from riding ebikes, concerns about age or experience and

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 8 of 9



focusing on training, conditions of the bike lanes, the bike lane east bound on Lomas Santa
Fe was rough with a lot of gravel, getting bike infrastructure in top shape, construction signs
placed in the bike lane, taking a regional Sheriff's approach, the inconsistency of rules in
different cities, more street sweeping for gravel, adding paint where it helps direct bikes and
cars, requiring bike shops to share a handout when they are purchasing a bike for a minor,
whether a speed limit could be established and enforced, working with Assemblymen Tasha
Boerner and legislation, and possibly adding in a bike and cyclist education at the DMV when
getting a driver license.

Captain Lawrence said that education, infrastructure, and enforcement are the keys, that
behavior starts at home, that much of Solana Beach traffic was transitory, and that a retraining
of drivers is necessary.

Council and Staff discussed the Lomas Santa Fe improvements and hoping the project will
be out to bid by the end of the year, that temporary improvements of paint could be done
earlier, considering widening of some bike lanes, coordinating with the schools, issue with
obtaining insurance for in-person safety classes, and local bike companies that do offer on
road training.

COMPENSATION & REIMBURSEMENT DISCLOSURE: None

GC: Article 2.3. Compensation: 53232.3. (a) Reimbursable expenses shall include, but not be limited
to, meals, lodging, and travel. 53232.3 (d) Members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on
meetings attended at the expense of the local agency “City” at the next regular meeting of the
legislative body.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS: Council Committees

REGIONAL COMMITTEES: (outside agencies, appointed by this Council)
STANDING COMMITTEES: (All Primary Members) (Permanent Committees)
CITIZEN COMMISSION(S)

ADJOURN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 8:33 p.m.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk Approved:

Solana Beach City Council Regular Meeting Minutes July 12, 2023 Page 9 of 9


https://www.ci.solana-beach.ca.us/index.asp?SEC=584E1192-3850-46EA-B977-088AC3E81E0D&Type=B_BASIC

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH

SOLANA BEACH CITY COUNCIL, SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY, PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, & HOUSING AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Joint Meeting - Closed Session

Monday, July 24, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.
City Hall / Council Chambers, 635 S. Highway 101, Solana Beach, California

CITY COUNCILMEMBERS
Lesa Heebner

Mayor
David A. Zito Jewel Edson
Deputy Mayor / Councilmember District 1 Councilmember District 3
Kristi Becker Jill MacDonald
Councilmember District 2 Councilmember District 4
Gregory Wade Johanna Canlas Angela lvey
City Manager City Attorney City Clerk

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL:

Mayor Heebner called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

Present: Lesa Heebner, David A. Zito, Jewel Edson, Kristi Becker, Jill MacDonald

Absent: None
Also Present: Greg Wade, City Manager
Johanna Canlas, City Attorney

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS (ONLY): None

Report to Council Chambers and submit speaker slips to the City Clerk before
the meeting recesses to closed session.

CLOSED SESSION:

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 4957
City Manager, City Attorney

No reportable action.

ADJOURN:
Mayor Heebner adjourned the meeting at 5:40 p.m.

Angela Ivey, City Clerk Council Approved:



STAFF REPORT

CITY OF SOLANA BEACH
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Councilmembers
FROM: Gregory Wade, City Manager
MEETING DATE: August 23, 2023
ORIGINATING DEPT: Finance
SUBJECT: Register of Demands

BACKGROUND:

Section 3.04.020 of the Solana Beach Municipal Code requires that the City Council ratify a
register of demands which represents all financial demands made upon the City for the
applicable period.

Register of Demands: 06/24/2023 through 08/04/2023

Check Register - Disbursement Fund (Attachment 1) $ 4,554,215.94
Net Payroll Retiree Health July 6, 2023 3,547.00
Net Payroll Retiree Health August 3, 2023 3,547.00
Net Payroll Council July 13, 2023 5,153.40
Net Payroll Staff O01 July 7, 2023 288,098.32
Net Payroll Staff 002 July 21, 2023 365,189.03
Net Payroll Staff O03 August 4, 2023 308,779.95
Net Payroll Staff OM1 July 24, 2023 667.43
Net Payroll Staff OM2 July 26, 2023 742.51
TOTAL $ 5,529,940.58
DISCUSSION:

Staff certifies that the register of demands has been reviewed for accuracy, that funds are
available to pay the above demands, and that the demands comply with the adopted budget.

CEQA COMPLIANCE STATEMENT:

Not a project as defined by CEQA.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The register of demands for June 24, 2023 through August 4, 2023 reflects total expenditures
of $5,529,940.58 from various City sources.

CITY COUNCIL ACTION:

AGENDA ITEM # A.2



August 23, 2023
Register of Demands
Page 2 of 2
WORK PLAN:

N/A
OPTIONS:

e Ratify the register of demands.
e Do not ratify and provide direction.

DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the City Council ratify the above register of demands.

CITY MANAGER’S RECOMMENDATION:

Approve Department Recommendation.

ﬁd’.-

/Gregory Wade, City Manager

Attachments:

1. Check Register — Disbursement Fund



City of Solana Beach

Register of Demands
6/24/2023 - 8/4/2023

Page: 1 of 20

Department Check/EFT
Vendor Description Date Number Amount
100 - GENERAL FUND
MISSION SQUARE PLAN 302817 PLAN NUMBER: 302817 06/29/2023 9000876 $12,443.33
MISSION SQUARE PLAN 302817 PLAN NUMBER: 302817 06/29/2023 9000876 $5,344.82
MISSION SQUARE PLAN 302817 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant O01 07/06/2023 9000887 $16,657.97
MISSION SQUARE PLAN 302817 Payroll Run 2 - Warrant OC1 07/14/2023 9000898 $4,780.43
MISSION SQUARE PLAN 302817 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant 002 07/20/2023 9000912 $19,201.23
MISSION SQUARE PLAN 302817 Payroll Run 1 - Warrant 003 08/03/2023 9000928 $17,356.28
SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC Payroll Run 1 - Warrant 001 07/06/2023 9000890 $850.00
SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC Payroll Run 1 - Warrant 002 07/20/2023 9000916 $850.00
SOLANA BEACH FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC Payroll Run 1 - Warrant 003 08/03/2023 9000931 $850.00
US BANK LEAGUE OF CA CITY CONFERENCE 07/27/2023 104176 $650.00
US BANK LEAGUE OF CA CITY CONFERENCE 07/27/2023 104176 $650.00
US BANK IGNITE NEOGOV CONFERENCE 07/27/2023 104176 $1,099.00
US BANK NEOGOV CONFERNCE HOTEL 07/27/2023 104176 $190.48
PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES, INC JUN 23-PPD LEGAL 07/14/2023 104116 $25.90
PRE-PAID LEGAL SERVICES, INC JUL 23-PPD LEGAL 07/27/2023 104185 $25.90
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC CY2023 QTR 2 SPECIAL EVENT INSURANCE 07/14/2023 104096 $11,013.49
AFLAC JUNE 23 06/29/2023 104017 $789.70
AFLAC JULY 23 08/03/2023 104194 $789.70
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT. MAY 23-SHERIFF LAW ENFORCEMENT/SB OVERTIME 07/06/2023 104073 $12,701.73
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT. MAY 23-CR TOW FEE 07/06/2023 104073 ($109.42)
SAN DIEGO COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPT. JUN 23-CREDIT TOW FEE 08/03/2023 104216 ($164.13)
DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION APR-JUN 23 SMIP FEES 07/14/2023 104094 $1,274.60
MISSION SQUARE RHS 801939 PLAN NUMBER: 801939 06/29/2023 9000877 $2,110.96
SUN LIFE FINANCIAL JULY 23 LIFE INS 07/20/2023 9000918 $1,466.94
SUN LIFE FINANCIAL JULY 23 LIFE INS 07/20/2023 9000918 $400.00
SUN LIFE FINANCIAL JULY 23 LIFE INS 07/20/2023 9000918 $1,780.97
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT FY23 QTR 4 SB1186 PAYMENT 08/03/2023 104203 $76.40
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN APR-JUN 23-BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $278.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN APR-JUN 23-BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($27.80)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN OCT-DEC 2020 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $184.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN OCT-DEC 2020 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($18.40)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN JAN-MAR 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $254.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN JAN-MAR 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($25.40)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN OCT-DEC 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $374.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN OCT-DEC 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($37.40)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN JAN-MAR 2023 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $1,459.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN JAN-MAR 2023 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($145.90)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN APR-JUN 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $743.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN APR-JUN 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($74.30)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN JUL-SEP 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $594.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN JUL-SEP 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($59.40)
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN OCT-DEC 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 $262.00
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN OCT-DEC 2021 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE 07/14/2023 104088 ($26.20)

[ATTACHMENT 1|



mbavin
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 1


CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN
CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CMSN
STUDIO GRIT LLC

CALPERS

CALPERS

CALPERS

LAND HOLDINGS, LLC

WILL MORRISON / VANESSA MORRISON
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
STERLING HEALTH SERVICES, INC.
SELF INSURED SERVICES COMPANY
SELF INSURED SERVICES COMPANY
INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

INSTATAX

PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION
PAYMENTUS CORPORATION

JAN-MAR 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE
JAN-MAR 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE
APR-JUN 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE
APR-JUN 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE
JUL-SEP 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE
JUL-SEP 2022 BUILDING STANDARDS SURCHARGE
REFUND-ENC22-0070 ENCROACHMENT PERMIT

DEPOSIT

N26 06/23/23 PD (06/26/23 PERS)
N26 ADJ

PERS ADJ LATE ENROLLMENT
RFND-SBGR-402/521 S RIOS

RFND-GRD21-0005/840 AVOCADO

N26 FSA/DCA CONTRIBUTION
N26 FSA/DCA CONTRIBUTION
NC12 FSA CONTRIBUTION
001 FSA/DCA FUNDING

001 FSA/DCA FUNDING

OC1 FSA CONTRIBUTION
002 FSA/DCA CONTRIBUTIONS
002 FSA/DCA CONTRIBUTIONS
JUL 23-DENTAL

AUG 23-DENTAL

N25 TAX PAYMENT

N25 TAX PAYMENT

N25 TAX PAYMENT

N25 TAX PAYMENT

N25 TAX PAYMENT

N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT
N26/NM6 TAX PAYMENT

001 TAX PAYMENT

001 TAX PAYMENT

001 TAX PAYMENT

001 TAX PAYMENT

001 TAX PAYMENT
SEPTEMBER 22

OCTOBER 22

NOVEMBER 22

DECEMBER 22

JANUARY 23

FEBRUARY 23

MARCH 23

APRIL 23

MAY 23

JUNE 23

07/14/2023
07/14/2023
07/14/2023
07/14/2023
07/14/2023
07/14/2023
07/20/2023

06/26/2023
06/27/2023
06/26/2023
07/06/2023
07/06/2023
06/29/2023
06/29/2023
06/29/2023
07/14/2023
07/14/2023
07/20/2023
07/27/2023
07/27/2023
07/06/2023
08/03/2023
06/26/2023
06/26/2023
06/26/2023
06/26/2023
06/26/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
06/28/2023
07/12/2023
07/12/2023
07/12/2023
07/12/2023
07/12/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023

104088
104088
104088
104088
104088
104088
104167

9062623
9062723
90626232
104067
104079
9000882
9000882
9000882
9000905
9000905
9000917
9000923
9000923
9000885
9000925
990120252
990120252
990120252
990120252
990120252
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120253
990120256
990120256
990120256
990120256
990120256
104215
104215
104215
104215
104215
104215
104215
104215
104215
104215

Page: 2 of 20

$385.00
($38.50)
$156.00
($15.60)
$137.00
($13.70)
$793.00

$53,666.73
$892.01
$1,720.83
$97,896.74
$9,710.32
$819.68
$1,442.97
$216.67
$1,442.97
$819.68
$216.67
$1,442.97
$819.68
$2,453.10
$2,738.70
$10,218.52
$2,370.31
$27,698.94
$2,779.98
$7,459.02
$39,843.14
$9,644.40
$110.00
$8,486.34
$15,212.77
$2,734.55
$2,219.79
$290.00
$859.26
$30,696.82
$6,550.90
$8,641.04
$11,103.32
$2,837.09
$300.77
$665.84
$527.05
$170.57
$195.98
$189.00
$537.01
$383.06
$816.78
$464.87



FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
STATE OF COLORADO

CALIFORNIA FIREFIGHTERS BENEFIT TRUST
CALIFORNIA FIREFIGHTERS BENEFIT TRUST
JOHN AND JILL DILLARD 2003 TRUST

POPE TREE SERVICE

TOM CARTER

EVAN WATKINS

MARTIN KATTOULA AND LUBNA DOODA

ALI VASSEFI

ALl VASSEFI

AMANDA SMOTHERS

HALLMARK COMMUNITIES

LORI CHAMBERLAIN

MARCELLA SANTAMARIA
RICARDO VASQUEZ
RICARDO VASQUEZ
GRANADOS AVE PARTNERS
TOURMALINE BUILDERS, INC
IAFF-MERP

LOCO VIENTO TRUST

LOCO VIENTO TRUST

1005100 - CITY COUNCIL

SAN DIEGUITO RIVER VALLEY

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

US BANK

NORTH COAST REPERTORY THEATER
CASA DE AMISTAD

COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTER

BOYS & GIRLS CLUB OF SAN DIEGUITO
BIKE WALK SOLANA

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO_467
ASSISTANCE LEAG RNCHO SAN DIEGITO
SOLANA BEACH CIVIC & HISTORICAL SOC
N. C. IMMIGRATION & CITIZENSHIP CTR
DISCONNECT COLLECTIVE, INC.

LA COLONIA COMMUNITY FOUNDATION
JALISCIENCE FOLKLORIC ACADEMY

SAN DIEGO ASSOC OF GOVERNMENTS
CALIFORNIA WESTERN SCHOOL OF LAW

RANCHO SANTA FE YOUTH SOCCER

JUL 23-VISION

AUG 23-VISION

N25/N26 CO TAX PMNT

001 FIREFIGHTER BENEFIT CONTRIBUTION
002 FIRE FIGHTER TRUST PAYMENT
RFND-ENC21-0010/1530 SANTA SABINA
RFND-ENC23-0041/447 S SIERRA
RFND-06/24/23-FCCC
RFND-06/23/23-FCCC
RFND-ENC22-0106/115 S RIOS
RFND-DRP22-016/SDP22-014
RFND-DRP22-016/SDP22-014

RFND-VIEW ASSESSMENT FEE
REFUND-ENC22-0043 GRADING PERMIT DEPOSIT

REFUND-MOD23-001 VIEW ASSESSMENT
APPLICATION FEE

CXL-07/23/23 FCCC RENTAL
CXL-07/15/23 LCCC RENTAL
CXL-07/15/23 LCCC RENTAL
REFUND: GRD20-0045 GRADING PERMIT DEPOSIT
OVERPAYMENT-BC-011659
002 FF BENEFIT CONTRIBUTION
RFND-DRP19-011/SDP19-012
RFND-DRP19-011/SDP19-012

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

SAN DIEGUITO RIVER PARK JPA
CLOSED SESSION

CLOSED SESSION

CLOSED SESSION

BAGELS FOR SIGNING CEREMONY
CLOSED SESSION

CLOSED SESSION

BINDER FOR CONGRESSMAN SIGNING
BAGELS FOR SIGNING CEREMONY
CLOSED SESSION

FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
LAFCO FY23/24

FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT
FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT

FY 24-SANDAG Member Dues

FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT - COMMUNITY LAW
PROJECT

FY23/24 COMMUNITY GRANT

07/06/2023
08/03/2023
07/05/2023
07/06/2023
07/20/2023
07/06/2023
07/06/2023
07/06/2023
07/06/2023
07/14/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023

07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023
08/03/2023

07/20/2023
07/27/2023
07/27/2023
06/30/2023
06/30/2023
06/30/2023
06/30/2023
06/30/2023
06/30/2023
06/30/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
07/20/2023
08/03/2023
07/20/2023

07/20/2023

104063
104206
990120257
104057
104136
104066
104071
104077
104062
104106
104195
104195
104131
104150
104153

104154
104162
104162
104148
104223
104228
104211
104211

104163
104176
104176
104050
104050
104050
104050
104050
104050
104050
104157
104138
104141
104135
104134
104143
104132
104166
104155
104147
104152
104151
104217
104137

104161

Page: 3 of 20

$526.09
$548.67
$346.70
$2,300.00
$2,300.00
$18,997.44
$571.00
$500.00
$500.00
$32,571.66
$562.00
$4,868.25
$600.00
$793.00
$600.00

$500.00
$103.53
$414.00
$122,776.48
$19.00
$2,300.00
$535.00
$4,632.75

$686,415.09

$90,466.00
$227.49
$221.96
$127.97
$38.32
$20.49
$182.19
$21.20
$3.00
$206.91
$6,000.00
$5,000.00
$5,000.00
$6,000.00
$3,650.00
$8,987.53
$4,000.00
$6,000.00
$4,350.00
$3,000.00
$6,000.00
$5,000.00
$4,956.00
$5,000.00

$1,000.00



SOLANA BEACH COMMUNITY CONNECTIONS

1005150 - CITY CLERK
IRON MOUNTAIN
IRON MOUNTAIN
IRON MOUNTAIN
DEL MAR BLUE PRINT COMPANY, INC.
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SVC
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL
BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
FEDEX
FEDEX
GRANICUS INC
BUSINESS PRINTING COMPANY INC
CORODATA RECORDS MANAGEMENT, INC
PERFECT IMAGE VIDEO
PERFECT IMAGE VIDEO

1005200 - CITY MANAGER
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK
US BANK